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A proposed ordinance relating to placement and construction of traffic
calming installations and providing a process for petition and special

assessments

Milwaukee City Hali Suite 800 - 200 East Wells Street - Milwaukee, Wi

Dear Mr. Zalben:

By email dated December 5, 2006, Richard Withers of your staff forwarded the
newest version of the above proposed ordinance for our review. It is scheduled to
be heard before the Common Council on December 12, 2006.

In our opinion the proposed substitute ordinance is legal and enforceable.
However, there is a potential Hability issue if traffic calming installations are
approved without regard to, or in contravention of, sound engineering Judgment.

We addressed this same concern in a July 24, 2000 opinion regarding “Petitions
for the Installation of Stop Signs.” We have attached a copy for your convenience.

As we explained in our earlier opinion, Wisconsin law provides that the design,
mstallation, and operation or use of new traffic control devices placed and
maintained by local authorities “‘shall conform” to the Manual on Uniform Traffic
Control Devices (“Manual™). Sec. 349.065, Stats. The Manual defines “traffic
control device™ as “a sign, signal, marking, or other device used to regulate, warn,
or guide traffic, placed on, over, or adjacent to a street, highway, pedestrian
facility, or shared-use path by authority of a public agency having jurisdiction.”
Manual, Section 1A.13. Gur July 24, 2000 opinion explained that the Manual

2OTHE Ty AT By
Thn LYY AT BY

sconsin 53202-3551 « Teiephone: 414.286.2801 « TDD: 414.286.2025 - Fax 414.786.8550



Mr. Barry Zalben
December 8, 2006
Page 2

requires that any deviation from its standards on the placement of traffic control
devices must be based on engineering judgment.

Because the proposed ordinance excludes from its definition of “traffic calming
installations™ traffic signs, signals or “other traffic control device[s] as defined in
s. 349.065, Wis. Stats.,” such traffic calming installations would not likely be
governed by the Manual. Nonetheless, to limit the City’s exposure to liability in
the event of a pedestrian or vehicular accident, the same principle should apply:
approval of any traffic calming installation should conform to sound engineering
judgment.

Very truly yours, .
/f 'y &K/Q,__.—//
T 77 AT

GRANT F. LANGLEY
City Attorney

THOMAS D.” LER
Assistant City Attormey

TDM:tdm
c Ronald Leonhardt

1093-2006-3336:112892



GRANT F. LANGLEY
City Attorney

RUDOLPH M. KONRAD
Deputy City Attorney

THOMAS E. HAYES
PATRICK B, McDONNELL
CHARLES R. THEIS

Special Deputy City Attorneys

CITY OF MILWAUKEE

QOFFICE OF CITY ATTORNEY
800 CITY HALL
200 EAST WELLS STREET
MILWAUKEE, WISCONSIN 53202-3551
TELEPHONE (414} 286-2601
TOD 286-2025
FAX (414) 286-8550

July 24, 2000

Form CA-43

BEVERLY A, TEMPLE
THOMAS 0. GARTNER
LINDA ULISS BURKE
BRUCE D. SCHRIMPF
ROXANE 1., CRAWFORD
SUSAN D, BICKERT
HAZEL MOSLEY
HARRY A. STEIN
STUART §. MUKAMAL
THOMAS J. BEAMISH
MAURITA E. HOUREN
JOHN J. HEINEN
MICHAEL G. TOBIN
DAVID J. STANOSZ
SUSAN E. LAPPEN
DAVID R. HALBRGOKS
JAN A, SMOKOWICZ
PATRICIA A. FRICKER
HEI WICK SPOERL
KURT A, BEHLING
GREGG C. HAGOPIAN
ELLEN H. TANGEN

JAY A, UNORA
DONALD L. SCHRIEFER
EDWARD M. EHRLICH
CHRISTOPHER J. CHERELL
LEONARD A. TOKUS
MIRIAM R. HORWITZ
MARYNELL REGAN

Assistant City Atlorney

To the Honorable Members of the
Common Councit of the City of Milwaukee
200 East Wells Street, Room 203
Milwaukee, W1 53202

Re:  Commeon Council File No. 000169/
Petitions for the Installation of Stop Signs

Dear Common Council Members:

The proposed ordinance would require the Commissioner of Public Works to submit for
Common Council approval the installation of multi-way stop signs at an intersection if the
property meets certain criteria (residential, school, etc.), and if not less than 80% of the property

owners have signed a petition requesting the sign.

This version was revised from an earlier draft in which the Commissioner was required to
install the sign upon receipt of such a petition.

All locations of stop signs must be approved by the Common Council under existing

ardinances

Under this proposal the Commissioner would now be required to submit a location to the
councit “for approval” even if the Commissioner believes that multi-way signs at that location
would be unwarranted or dangerous in his engineering judgment and upon application of the
standards in the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices,

Because nothing in this ordinance, as it has been revised, precludes the Commissioner
from conducting an engineering study and making his recommendation and opirien known i



To the Honorable Members
of the Commeon Council of the
City of Milwaukee

[

July 24, 2000

the council, and because nothing in the ordinance requires the council to approve the location.
we can sign the ordinance as to legality and enforceability. We have serious reservations.
however, as 1o legality, liability, and the possibility of a dangerous condition should the
Common Council base approval of a stop sign on considerations other than engineering
judgment.

In other words. if the Common Council approves a sign simply because neighbors ask for
one, without basing its decision on sound engineering judgment, it may be acting in violation of
state law. it may be jeopardizing the safety of the public, and it may be exposing the City to
liability. We will explain these concerns.

State law provides that the design, installation, and operation or use of new traffic control
devices placed and maintained by local authorities “shall conform” to the uniform traffic control
devices manual. Sec. 349 065, Stats. The Wisconsin Department of Transportation is required
by faw to adopt a manual for a uniform system of traffic control devices which is consistent with
and conforms to “current nationally recognized standards for traffic control devices”” The
Department of Transportation has adopted the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices.

Paragraph 1A-4 of the manual is entitled “Engineering Study Required.” 1t states as
follows, in pertinent part:

“The decision to use a particular device at a particular location should be made on
the basis of an engineering study of the location. Thus, while this Manual
provides standards for design and application of traffic control devices, the
Manual is not a substitute for engineering judgment. It is the intent that the
provisions of this Manual be standards for traffic control devices installation, but
not a fegal requirement for installation.

‘Qualified engineers are needed to exercise the engineering judgment inherent in
the selection of traffic contro! devices, . 77

Therefore, aithough it is possible for a municipality to legally deviate from the manual’s
guidelines for placement of a sign. it can only do so based on engineering judgment We have
discussed this matter with the General Counsel for the Wisconsin Department of Transportation,
and he believes that it is likely a violation of state law 1o base such a decision on something other
than engineering fudgment.

If the Cuy violates state law by placing a sign in contravention of national engineering
standards or engineering judgment, and a pedestrian or vehicular accident occurs as a result of
that piacement. 1t 1s possible that the City would be held Hable for damages.
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We cannot say that the ordinance is not legal or enforceable. because it does not require
the mstallation of signs.  We strongly caution that approving the installation of a stop sign
without a basis in engineering judgment may violate state law, create a dangerous situation, and
result in City labtlity.

Very truly yours,

//
GRAVT F LA%Y
City Attorney. /’
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